came to the same view in the nineteenth century. By 1920, theatre organists tried to become stylists, emulating the flashier pianists and violinists of the previous half-century. Flourishes and poses at the console with distorted dynamics and liberties with melodies became common.

Popular folk music of our time emphasizes style at least as much as it does in content. Witness the work of Kate Smith, Peggy Lee, Bing Crosby (whose stock in trade was delaying entrances into phrases and clipping subsequent notes to catch up), and Elvis Presley, who made his style physical. Early stylistic organists were C. Sharpe Minor, Milt Herth, and Crawford. Later moderns are using personal charm and exotic clothing, but few of them are pure stylists; too many are copying other organists' devices.

Perhaps the day of style is over. Blame television for it. A funny event occurred at the end of the Bolshoi Ballet's Nutcracker on NBC last December 18. As the dancers, with Mrs. Gerald Ford as narrator, were taking their bows, NBC broke in with a commercial for peanut butter. I don't know whether there was any political significance or not, but I howled. A few days earlier, CBS had presented a much finer Nutcracker, done by the American Ballet Company. The ballet came to a beautiful close, but then what did CBS do? They threw on the crawl (the list of credits) at a speed that tore through the list of performers, slowing down for the names of the faceless producers, assistants, cameramen, scene-shifters, hairdressers and ratcatchers. This sort of hamminess can be passed without comment when it is exhibited at the close of the usual run of TV timekillers, but it calls for scorn when thrust upon what is supposed to be an offering for mature audiences. A recent episode of Kojak gave no credits whatever to actors. A new trick is to insert credits after the story gets going, forcing you to read the stuff if you don't tune out the station. What's all this got to do with theatre organs? Well, those TV people, excepting Lawrence Welk, don't use organs on their shows. And so far as the days when organists were powerful in directing public taste is concerned - well, they were great while they lasted.

AUGUST/SEPTEMBER, 1978 THEATRE ORGAN

THE ANDERSON PARAMOUNT

by John W. Landon

Originally planned as the Palace Theatre, Anderson, Indiana, the 1700-seat John Eberson atmospheric house was leased before construction was finished and opened as the "Paramount - A Publix Theatre." Built at a cost of \$800,000 in 1929, it was the grandest thing most of the citizens of this modest-sized Indiana community had ever seen. The auditorium was done in a Spanish decor with copies of famous statuary in the various coves and niches including Venus de Milo. It also boasted the usual twinkling stars and drifting clouds, stuffed parrots and artifical hanging vines. The ceiling of the main lobby was hand-painted in five colors and thousands of tiles in the original design of the lobby floor were set by hand. The terra-cotta facade on the building facing was so detailed that it merited its own blueprints.

Cover Photo . . .

John Eberson had designed a number of theatres in the midwest, particularly in Ohio and Indiana equipped with Page pipe organs which were built in Lima, Ohio. Perhaps the best known of these today is the 4/15 Page in the Embassy Theatre, Fort Wayne, Indiana, beautifully recorded by organist Buddy Nolan. Radio Station WHT in the Wrigley Building, Chicago, installed a 4/15 Page in their studios, broadcast over NBC in the late 1920's by Al Carney. The Casino on Catalina Island, off the California coast, also featured a Page organ. A Page pipe organ was also chosen for the Anderson Paramount. It consisted of three manuals and seven ranks, but in typical Page fashion it was highly unified. Almost no builder of theatre organs unified its instruments as heavily as did Page. There were 148 stop tablets allowing almost unlimited flexibility. Located in two chambers at either side of the proscenium are Flute, String, Vox Humana and Sousaphone in the main, and Kinura (actually Krumet), Tuba

and Tibia in the solo. The console was loaded with bric-a-brac and finished originally in green and gold.

The Anderson Paramount opened August 14, 1929 with a sound film. It never showed silents. The opening program included an address by Sam Katz, president of Paramount-Publix, a newsreel, a novelty song cartoon and the feature picture. *Coconuts* with the four Marx Brothers. For many years the organist was Hilda Lindstrom who came from Elwood, Indiana, every day by interurban to do the honors at the console. She also broadcast the Paramount organ over a local radio station.

The organ was idle for several years in the 1940's and 1950's except for accompanying an occasional stage show. The writer discovered it in 1955 while a college freshman at nearby Taylor University and has been playing it ever since. In 1964-65 the instrument was completely restored by Lewis Hodson and Rex Hoppes of Anderson. For several years thereafter, the writer played organ intermissions before the feature picture on Friday and Saturday evenings. After another brief period of disuse, organ intermissions resumed in 1974 and they continue weekly at present. The writer plays Saturday evenings, with Carlton Smith playing Fridays and Sundays. Lewis Hodson, Carlton Smith and Bob Dunn keep the instrument in first class condition. The writer recorded the organ in 1965 - the first time a Page organ had been heard on a long-playing disc. A new album by the writer at this organ is soon to be released. Although there is dust on the pre-plastic ivy and vandalism has decreed a perpetually cloudless sky, the stars still shine and twinkle to the vibration of the sixteen foot Sousaphones, as the console rises slowly to bring to a new generation a glimpse of the not too distant past.